
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

July 20, 2021 at 5:30 PM  

Council Meeting Room, 101 North State Street, 
Abbeville, Louisiana 70510 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE POSTED:  July 19, 2021 at 4:00 P.M.  

REGULAR ORDER OF BUSINESS 

             Call to Order by Mayor 
             Roll Call by Kathy Faulk  
             Prayer 
             Pledge  

PERSONNEL 

1. To accept the resignation of Clay Menard from the position of Public Works Director. 

2. To authorize advertisement for the position of Public Works Director. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Representative of Richard Development regarding its possible acquisition of property on US 167 at 

Alan Lane, to develop same for commercial purposes, and the applicability of the City's land use 

ordinances. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. To approve the minutes from July 6, 2021 regular City Council meeting. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
                  (To allow comments on any of the following items prior to action.) 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. To appoint a member to the Abbeville Fire and Police Civil Service Board.  Ms. Rossline Potier's term 

will expire on July 29, 2021. 

2. To authorize advertisement for bids for the LaFitte Drive-In Park recreational trail project. 

3. To authorize the Mayor to execute an intergovernmental agreement with the Vermilion Parish Police 

Jury to commit to paying one-half of the cost to overlay of the entrance road for Abbeville RV Park-

Councilwoman Roslyn White. 

4. To ratify the purchase of transformers from Techline Utility Supply in the amount of $8,012.50. 

5. To approve payment of partial payment #3 in the amount of $159,779.63 payable to LA Contracting 

Enterprises, LLC for the Flood Reduction Drainage Project. 

6. To adopt the City of Abbeville Social Media and Content Policy- Allie Horton. 

7. To approve the quotation from HIDCO in the amount of $12,000 for hauling and disposal of creosote 

posts. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. None. 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND UPDATES 

1.        Engineers  

2.        Public Works Director 

3.        Main Street Manager 

4.        Police Chief 

5.        Fire Chief 

TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION 

1.        Council Members 

1



ADJOURN 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 

if you need special assistance, please contact 
Mayor Mark Piazza’s office at 337-893-8550, 
describing the assistance that is necessary. 

2



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Regular Meeting 

July 6, 2021 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on July 6, 2021 at 5:30 P.M., 

at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State Street, 

Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Brady Broussard, Jr., Francis 

Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn White   

 

Members Absent:  Councilwoman Terry Broussard   

 

Also, Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

    Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Clay Menard, Public Works Director 

    Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

    Gene Sellers, Engineer 

    Richard Primeaux, Engineer  

    Richard Minvielle, Grant Consultant 

    Pastor Steve Delino, Parks and Recreation Board 

    Tommy Picard, Park Director, QSA 

    Ron Bordelon-Pan American Engineers for Murphy Oil  

               

Mayor Piazza asked Pastor Steve Delino to lead those assembled in prayer.  Mayor Piazza asked 

Chief Bill Spearman to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve the 

minutes from the June 1, 2021 and June 15, 2021 regular City Council meeting, the June 15,2021 

Personnel Interview meeting and the June 15, 2021 Committee meeting.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to ratify bills 

paid in the month of June 2021.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza asked if there are any comments from the public on any agenda item.  There were 

none. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to award the 

contract for Phase II of the City’s LCDBG Clearance Program to demolish two structures to the 

low bidder, Home Industry Disposal Company (HIDCO) in the amount of $17,600.00.  The motion 

was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  3(Plaisance, B. Broussard, Touchet) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT: 1(T. Broussard) 

 Abstain: 1(White) 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to award the 

contract for Phase III of the City’s LCDBG Clearance Program for asbestos abatement and 

3



2 
 

demolition of seven structures to the low bidder, Vermilion Shell & Limestone in the amount of 

$134,400.00.  The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  3(Plaisance, B. Broussard, Touchet) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT: 1(T. Broussard) 

 ABSTAIN: 1(White) 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to enter into a 

public hearing to receive comments for a proposed ordinance to amend Section 10-67, Penalties; 

pertaining a special event permitting.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Hearing 

Ms. Marilyn Mitchell asked for an explanation of the ordinance.  Mr. Funderburk stated this 

ordinance would put some teeth into the special event permit ordinance so that if anyone 

sponsors, organizes or hosts an event without complying with the special event permit ordinance 

they will be fined not less than $250 and no more than $500 for the first offense and/or 

incarcerated for not more than 60 days or both.  Then it telescopes up to $750 then up to $1,000 

for subsequent offenses.  For the purpose of this provision: any action taken by a person which 

facilitates a non-permitted event or encourages another person to attend a non-permitted event 

shall be deemed to be a sponsor, organizer or host of the event.  Ms. Mitchell asked if she has a 

party at her house and people come to her party, will this affect her.  Mayor Piazza stated no 

unless it flows into a public street.  This pertains to public property not on your own private 

property.  Ms. Mitchell asked if this is pertaining to a block party.  The Mayor stated that is correct.   

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to close the public 

hearing and reconvene the regular meeting.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/B. Broussard 

Ordinance 21-05 

 

An ordinance to amend Section 10-67 Penalties: pertaining to special event permitting. 

 

The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  4(Plaisance, B. Broussard, Touchet, White) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT: 1(T. Broussard) 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to approve a 

speed limit reduction from 25 MPH to 15 MPH beginning 150 feet from the western boundary 

through 150 feet from the eastern boundary of Sam’s Kids Safari located at 2761 Rodeo Road.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to surplus a 

seized 2009 Buick Enclave CXL that was awarded to the Abbeville Police Department.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to ratify the 

purchase of batteries plus installation for the Rodeo Road Electrical Substation and the Pete Noel 

4



3 
 

Electrical Substation from Concentric at a total cost of $17,550.00.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-10 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

the quotes from Griner Drilling Service, Inc. for a total cost of $8,695.00 for a new self-priming 

pump and flanged valves for Eaton Park Lift Station.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded Ms. Roslyn White to approve the plan 

change order #1 for the Rehabilitation of the Runway and Partial Taxiway project which increases 

the contract time by 101 days.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-12 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve 

payment of estimate for partial payment number 3 in the amount of $318,958.94 payable to 

Elliott Construction, LLC for the Rehabilitation of the Runway and Partial Taxiway project.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

Councilwoman White provided an update on the Louisiana Development Ready Communities 

Program.  They met with Louisiana Economic Development last week for the Louisiana 

Development Ready Communities Program.  The team consisted of Stacey Neal and Robbie 

Abboud from Louisiana Economic Development.  They are now putting together a community 

survey and doing a community assessment.  When complete we will have a strategic plan for 

economic development steps that the City can take to make us more appealing to businesses 

wanting to locate in Louisiana.  It will also put us ahead of other communities when businesses 

reach out to Louisiana Economic Development because we will be part of the certified plan.  Be 

on the lookout for a survey.  We will put it together, send it out and try to push it out in several 

ways to try and get the community to fill it out.  We will be updating the Council and the public 

as we have updates on that program. 

 

-13 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve change 

orders number 3 for an increase in the contract of $10,400.00 and number 4 for an increase in 

the contract of $32,541.00 relative to the Flood Reduction & Drainage Improvement project.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mr. Ron Bordelon representing Murphy Oil Gas Station was present to discuss the need for a 

variance to place a temporary small facility while the gas station is undergoing a total remodel.  

It would only be temporary until the new facility is ready.  The project will begin August 1, 2021.  

We hope to have it completed by November 1, 2021.  We will not sell fuel during the work as we 

will be changing the tanks too. 

 

-14 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve 

a variance of setback for a temporary building to be located at 3007 Veterans Memorial Drive for 

the rebuild of Murphy Oil Gas Station.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

- He reached out to Louisiana Crime Stoppers last week and they have informed him that 

they will have the cameras installed within the next 10 days.  At which time, they will 

invoice the City and we will pay that since it has already been approved by the Council. 

- The City will be receiving about $52,000 more than we anticipated as a result of the 

American Rescue Plan.  We do not know when the first payment will arrive. 

- The statement of loss has been filed for Hurricane Delta and it has been accepted by our 

insurance company.  Partial payment for the claim has been received and the balance 

5



4 
 

could be received any day now.  Upon receipt of that check, the City will be filing a 

supplemental claim for damages that occurred as a result of the hurricane but were not 

originally identified. 

 

Clay Menard, Public Works Director 

- We hauled a lot of dirt to Harmony Park, leveled it and dressed it up.  We will see how it 

will handle all the recent rain.  We have cut a swale ditch from the western boundary 

coming back toward South Lamar along the property line to make sure there will be no 

flooding from the neighbor unto the park and also no flooding from the park to the 

neighbor’s property. 

- The splashpad was put in service last week.  There are a few minor things that have to be 

worked out.  We are looking at putting a pressure reducer valve.  There were a lot of kids 

out there this past weekend.   

- The Fifth Street inlet project was completed.  We installed two new inlets. 

- We replaced a big section of sidewalk on Main Street in front of St. Mary Magdalen Church 

that were trip hazards. 

- City workers cleared the right of way on South Hollingsworth. 

- For the walking trail grant, he and Mr. Gene have to attend the public agency qualification 

training in Baton Rouge.  He will be attending tomorrow and Mr. Gene will attend on 

Thursday.  That is a requirement to receive the grant. 

- Councilman Touchet asked about the sidewalk at Herod Elementary.  Clay stated that he 

and Richard took a look at the problem.  It is the telephone cables underneath that.  We 

did reach out to AT&T but we have not heard back from them.  It is all their lines in there 

that causes the erosion.  We are working on a solution for that.  We have barricaded the 

area.   

- Councilman Touchet asked about the concrete that was put for the parish to pick up.  Clay 

stated the parish will pick up concrete at certain times of the year. 

 

Tommy Picard, Public Works Director-QSA 

- Discussed the necessity of times for the splashpad.  He will have a sign made with posted 

times once it is decided.  Councilman Broussard stated we could go from 7 AM to 9PM 

since school is out.  This would concur with the times the other parts of the park are open.  

Tommy stated that Brian Ford, with the Boys and Girls Club, would like to have the 

splashpad one day during the week for use by them.  Councilwoman White asked if the 

splashpad would be open every day.  Mayor Piazza stated that would be a council decision.  

He was thinking that maybe we would have it open on Saturday and Sunday and upon 

special request, during the week.  Councilwoman White stated that she thinks it should be 

open every day of the week.  Mayor Piazza stated that we would not open it during the 

rain.  Councilman Broussard stated maybe we could give the Brian Ford Wednesday.  

Councilwoman White stated he should only have it for a half day.  Mayor Piazza stated we 

will get a better idea now that it is open and we can change the hours and days as needed.  

He also wanted the Council to consider if they want to allow people to reserve it for special 

events.  Tommy stated people are willing to pay for that.  Mayor Piazza stated we would 

not allow special events on weekends.  Councilwoman White suggested that we could 

charge $25 per hour.  Councilman Plaisance asked how we would keep the other children 

out of the splashpad if we let someone reserve it.  Councilwoman White stated maybe it 

would be best to not allow it to be reserved the first summer and then we can see how it 

goes.  They can still have their party there but it just wouldn’t be private. 

- Brandon Briggs will start on the tennis court gate tomorrow. 

- Had a tournament this past weekend.  We had a lot of rain. 

- We will start trimming the trees in the park.   

6



5 
 

- Paul will be painting all the lines where they walk.  We will paint it yellow. 

- We need some no parking signs.  Mayor Piazza asked him to look at temporary signs that 

could be put out when needed.  We will have the road markings repainted. 

 

Mayor Mark Piazza 

- Discussed the Police Chief’s breakdown of the service calls. 

- The splashpad is open.  He will get with Tommy to discuss the specifics and come up with 

some signs and details.  It is a learning experience.  We will monitor the number of people 

utilizing the splashpad.  They were out there all weekend long.  He thanked the Rotary 

Club for their participation.  It is a great addition to the park.  We have some new tables 

that we will put back around the splashpad.  It is a big improvement and it looks great.  

Along with the new tennis courts, we have had some really nice improvements to Comeaux 

Park. 

- We need to put up security cameras at the park.  He will get with the Chief about that.  

We had a break in at the press box in Seller’s Field. 

- He distributed a sheet that he received from LEPA on the residential electric bills for the 

month of May.  If you look at how we compare to other electricity providers, it is fantastic 

news for our residential constituents.  When you can compare us when using 1,000 KWH 

to be only $2.00 away from SLEMCO that is good news.  We are way below CLECO and 

Entergy.  The price of natural gas is $3.60 compared to $2.00 last summer.  We have a 

fixed rate with our electricity provider, Constellation.   

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- There were hundreds of cars at Comeaux Park this weekend for the tournament.  It was a 

big success. 

- The splashpad is a great success.  There were a lot of children on the splashpad.  Credit to 

the Abbeville Rotary Club and the City of Abbeville.   

 

Councilman Francis Plaisance 

- Recognized 4-H and the Abbeville Garden Club.  They will be planting at least 10 trees in 

the large dog park at LaFitte Park. 

- People are catching a lot of bass in the park.  There was a 7-pound bass caught recently. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

 

7



8



9



10



11



12



City of Abbeville Social Media and Content Policy

PURPOSE

The City of Abbeville has an overriding interest and expectation in deciding what is “spoken” on
behalf of the City through the use of Social Media sites (including but not limited to Facebook and
Instagram). This Social Media Policy establishes guidelines for the establishment and use of Social
Media by the City as means of conveying information to its residents about the City and its events
and activities.

The intended purpose behind establishing City of Abbeville Social Media sites is to disseminate
information from the City, about the City, to its residents.

Nothing in this policy shall be applied to prohibit or infringe upon any communication, speech or
expression that is protected or privileged under law. This includes speech and expression protected
under state or federal constitutions as well as other applicable laws.

GENERAL POLICY

1. City Social Media sites should make clear that they are maintained by the City of Abbeville
and that they follow the City’s Social Media Policy.

2. Wherever possible, City Social Media sites should link back to the official City of Abbeville
website for forms, documents, online services, and other information necessary to conduct
business with the City of Abbeville.

3. Department-designated Social Media Administrators and City Attorney will monitor content
on City Social Media sites to ensure adherence to both the City’s Social Media Policy and the
interest and goals of the City of Abbeville.

4. The City reserves the right to restrict or remove any content that is deemed in violation of this
Social Media Policy or any applicable law. Any content removed based on these guidelines
must be retained by the department-designated Social Media Administrator(s) and City

13



Attorney for 3 years at minimum, indicating the time, date and identity of the poster, when
available.

5. These guidelines must be displayed to users or made available by hyperlink.
6. The City will approach the use of Social Media tools as consistently as possible, enterprise

wide.
7. The City of Abbeville’s website at http://www.cityofabbeville.net will remain the City’s

primary and predominant Internet presence.
8. All City Social Media sites shall adhere to applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations

and policies.
9. City Social Media sites may be subject to the Louisiana Public Records Act. Any content

maintained in Social Media format that is related to City business, including a list of
subscribers, posted communication, and communication submitted for posting, may be a
public record subject to public disclosure.

10. Comments on topics or issues not within the jurisdictional purview of the City of Abbeville
may be removed.

11. Employees representing the City government via City Social Media sites must conduct
themselves at all times as a representative of the City and in accordance with all City policies.

12. This Social Media Policy may be revised at any time.

COMMENT POLICY

1. As a public entity the City must abide by certain standards to serve all its constituents in a
civil and unbiased manner.

2. Comments or content containing any of the following inappropriate forms of content shall not
be permitted and are subject to removal and/or restriction by the City:

A. Comments not related to the business of the City (or specific Department if
Department-specific Site), or not relevant to the original topic.

B. Violent, profane, obscene or pornographic content and/or language;
C. Content that promotes, fosters or perpetuates discrimination on the basis of

race, creed, color, age, religion, sexual orientation, gender, or national origin;
D. Content that threatens or defames any person or organization;
E. Content that is hateful or incites violence;
F. Solicitation of commerce, including but not limited to, advertising of any

non-government related event, or business or product for sale;
G. Conduct in violation of any federal, state or local law;
H. Encouragement of any illegal activity;
I. Information that may tend to compromise the safety or security of the public

or public systems

14



J. Content that violates a legal ownership interest, such as a copyright, of any
party

3. A comment posted by a member of the public on any City of Abbeville Social Media site is
the opinion of the commentator or poster only, and publication of a comment does not imply
endorsement of, or agreement by the City of Abbeville, nor do such comments necessarily
reflect the opinions or policies of the City of Abbeville.

4. The City of Abbeville reserves the right to deny access to City of Abbeville Social Media
sites for any person, who violates the City of Abbeville’s Social Media Policy, at any time
and without prior notice.

5. Departments shall monitor their Social Media Sites for comments requesting responses from
the City and for comments in violation of this policy.

6. When a City of Abbeville  employee responds to a comment, in his/her capacity as a City of
Abbeville employee, the employee’s name and title should be made available, and the
employee shall not share personal information about himself or herself, or other City
employees.

7. All comments posted to any City of Abbeville Facebook sites are bound by Facebook’s
Statement of Rights and Responsibilities, located at http://www.facebook.com/terms.php, and
the City of Abbeville reserves the right to report any violation of Facebook’s Statement of
Rights and Responsibilities to Facebook with the intent of Facebook taking appropriate and
reasonable responsive action.

REPORTING/REMOVAL OF UNAUTHORIZED COMMENTS

The City requires that Department-designated Social Media Administrators to immediately notify the
City Attorney if there is any posted material that may be inappropriate, that violates this Policy, or
any City policy, or  is illegal, or that potentially infringes the copyrights or other rights of any
persons. The City Attorney will investigate and respond to all reports of potential violations of this
Policy.

Any content removed based on these guidelines must be retained by the sponsoring Department for 3
years at minimum, including the time, date and identity of the poster, when available. Upon removal
of content, the Social Media Administrator shall notify the commenter that their response has been
deemed inappropriate and removed due to inconsistency with the City’s content requirements.

15



The City reserves the right, at any time and without prior notice, to deny access to the Social Media
site to any individual who violates this Policy.

GUIDELINES TO BE ADHERED TO PRIOR TO
SUBMITTING A SUBJECT FOR POSTING

The Social Media Administrator is authorized to post items on the City’s platforms only if the
subject matter of the post is related to one or more of the following topics:

1. Municipal Services;
2. Notices Regarding Emergency Conditions;
3. City Sponsored Events;
4. City Parks;
5. City Recreation Information;
6. To Acknowledge Legal Holidays and Commemorative Dates;
7. To Promote the City’s Website;
8. To Recognize a New Business Within the City;
9. To Acknowledge the Historical Significance of a Person, Place or Thing;
10. Posts From Other Governmental Entities Which are In Keeping With This Policy;
11. Community Events (as defined in this policy);
12. Recognition Awards to Persons, a Civic Club, a Governmental Entity, or a School.

The Social Media Administrator is not authorized to post items on the City’s platforms if the
requested post:

1. Violates applicable state and federal laws;
2. Contains obscene or vulgar language, codes, photographs, or graphics;
3. Contains an incorrect narrative or disseminates false or misleading information;
4. Is designed to promote one business/institution to the disadvantage of any
competitor;
5. Is designed to promote a Religious Organization (as defined in this policy).

16



TERMS OF SERVICE

Each type of Social Media maintains a “Terms of Use” agreement. All comments posted to any City
Social Media Site are bound by these Terms of Use and the City reserves the right to report any user
violation to the responsive authority of the platform being utilized.

DEFINITIONS

Community Events means those events which create and foster a positive community spirit
through participation, cooperation, and volunteerism, and provide opportunities for recreation,
entertainment, celebration and education. These events are typically held by not-for-profit
organizations, excluding those associated with a religious organization, to celebrate or
acknowledge significant events, or to fundraise for community initiatives or charitable purposes.

Religious Organizations include churches, conventions, and associations of churches, integrated
auxiliaries of churches, nondenominational ministries, interdenominational and ecumenical
organizations, and other entities whose principal purpose is the study or advancement of religion
as recognized in Section 510 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code

17


	Top
	1.	Public Works Director resignation
	2.	Open public works position
	1.	Richard Development
	1.	7/6/21 MINUTES
	July 6, 2021 regular meeting

	1.	Abbeville Fire & Police Civil Service
	Abbeville fire-police civil service letter

	2.	Lafitte Park walking trail
	3.	Abbeville RV Park overlay
	4.	Transformers
	Techline invoice

	5.	Flood reduction program pmt #3
	Executed Partial Payment No 3-Flood reduction project

	6.	Social media and content policy
	Final Final SM Policy

	7.	HIDCO-pole disposal
	1.	No old business
	Bottom

